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representatives, who are parties to the 
reviews. 

Limited disclosure of business 
proprietary information (BPI) under an 
administrative protective order (APO) 
and BPI service list.—Pursuant to 
section 207.7(a) of the Commission’s 
rules, the Secretary will make BPI 
gathered in these reviews available to 
authorized applicants under the APO 
issued in the reviews, provided that the 
application is made by 45 days after 
publication of this notice. Authorized 
applicants must represent interested 
parties, as defined by 19 U.S.C. 1677(9), 
who are parties to the reviews. A party 
granted access to BPI following 
publication of the Commission’s notice 
of institution of the reviews need not 
reapply for such access. A separate 
service list will be maintained by the 
Secretary for those parties authorized to 
receive BPI under the APO. 

Staff report.—The prehearing staff 
report in the reviews will be placed in 
the nonpublic record on November 8, 
2010, and a public version will be 
issued thereafter, pursuant to section 
207.64 of the Commission’s rules. 

Hearing.—The Commission will hold 
a hearing in connection with the 
reviews beginning at 9:30 a.m. on 
December 7, 2010, at the U.S. 
International Trade Commission 
Building. Requests to appear at the 
hearing should be filed in writing with 
the Secretary to the Commission on or 
before November 30, 2010. A nonparty 
who has testimony that may aid the 
Commission’s deliberations may request 
permission to present a short statement 
at the hearing. All parties and 
nonparties desiring to appear at the 
hearing and make oral presentations 
should attend a prehearing conference 
to be held at 9:30 a.m. on December 2, 
2010, at the U.S. International Trade 
Commission Building. Oral testimony 
and written materials to be submitted at 
the public hearing are governed by 
sections 201.6(b)(2), 201.13(f), 207.24, 
and 207.66 of the Commission’s rules. 
Parties must submit any request to 
present a portion of their hearing 
testimony in camera no later than 7 
business days prior to the date of the 
hearing. 

Written submissions.—Each party to 
the reviews may submit a prehearing 
brief to the Commission. Prehearing 
briefs must conform with the provisions 
of section 207.65 of the Commission’s 
rules; the deadline for filing is 
November 18, 2010. Parties may also file 
written testimony in connection with 
their presentation at the hearing, as 
provided in section 207.24 of the 
Commission’s rules, and posthearing 
briefs, which must conform with the 

provisions of section 207.67 of the 
Commission’s rules. The deadline for 
filing posthearing briefs is December 16, 
2010; witness testimony must be filed 
no later than three days before the 
hearing. In addition, any person who 
has not entered an appearance as a party 
to the reviews may submit a written 
statement of information pertinent to 
the subject of the reviews on or before 
December 16, 2010. On February 1, 
2011, the Commission will make 
available to parties all information on 
which they have not had an opportunity 
to comment. Parties may submit final 
comments on this information on or 
before February 3, 2011, but such final 
comments must not contain new factual 
information and must otherwise comply 
with section 207.68 of the Commission’s 
rules. All written submissions must 
conform with the provisions of section 
201.8 of the Commission’s rules; any 
submissions that contain BPI must also 
conform with the requirements of 
sections 201.6, 207.3, and 207.7 of the 
Commission’s rules. The Commission’s 
rules do not authorize filing of 
submissions with the Secretary by 
facsimile or electronic means, except to 
the extent permitted by section 201.8 of 
the Commission’s rules, as amended, 67 
FR 68036 (November 8, 2002). Even 
where electronic filing of a document is 
permitted, certain documents must also 
be filed in paper form, as specified in II 
(C) of the Commission’s Handbook on 
Electronic Filing Procedures, 67 FR 
68168, 68173 (November 8, 2002). 

Additional written submissions to the 
Commission, including requests 
pursuant to section 201.12 of the 
Commission’s rules, shall not be 
accepted unless good cause is shown for 
accepting such submissions, or unless 
the submission is pursuant to a specific 
request by a Commissioner or 
Commission staff. 

In accordance with sections 201.16(c) 
and 207.3 of the Commission’s rules, 
each document filed by a party to the 
reviews must be served on all other 
parties to the reviews (as identified by 
either the public or BPI service list), and 
a certificate of service must be timely 
filed. The Secretary will not accept a 
document for filing without a certificate 
of service. 

Authority: These reviews are being 
conducted under authority of title VII of the 
Tariff Act of 1930; this notice is published 
pursuant to section 207.62 of the 
Commission’s rules. 

By order of the Commission. 

Issued: August 3, 2010. 
Marilyn R. Abbott, 
Secretary to the Commission. 
[FR Doc. 2010–19599 Filed 8–9–10; 8:45 am] 

BILLING CODE 7020–02–P 

DEPARTMENT OF JUSTICE 

Notice of Lodging of Consent Decree 
Under the Clean Air Act 

Notice is hereby given that on August 
4, 2010, a proposed Consent Decree (the 
‘‘Decree’’) in United States v. 
Massachusetts Bay Transportation 
Authority (‘‘MBTA’’) and Massachusetts 
Bay Commuter Railroad Company, 
L.L.C., Civil Action No. 1:10–cv–11311, 
was lodged with the United States 
District Court for the District of 
Massachusetts. 

In a complaint, filed simultaneously 
with the Decree, the United States 
alleges that the Massachusetts Bay 
Transportation Authority (‘‘MBTA’’) and 
the Massachusetts Bay Commuter 
Railroad Company, L.L.C. (‘‘MBCR’’) 
violated the Clean Air Act, 42 U.S.C. 
7401 et seq., and 310 CMR § 7.11(2)(b), 
a regulation included in the 
Massachusetts’ State Implementation 
Plan, by causing, suffering, allowing, or 
permitting the unnecessary foreseeable 
idling of a diesel powered locomotive 
for a continuous period of time longer 
than thirty minutes, and not subject to 
the regulation’s exception. 

Pursuant to the Decree, MBTA and 
MBCR will: (1) Install sufficient electric 
plug-in stations throughout the MBTA’s 
commuter rail system to fully supply 
electric auxiliary power to all diesel 
locomotives that lay over at all of the 
MBTA’s layover facilities; (2) 
implement a fuel switch supplemental 
environmental project (‘‘SEP’’) that 
requires Defendants to switch the 
MBTA’s entire commuter train fleet 
from low sulfur diesel fuel (500 ppm 
sulfur) to ultra-low sulfur diesel fuel (15 
ppm sulfur) two years prior to federal 
regulations mandating the switch; and 
(3) retrofit 14 diesel locomotives with 
new head end power units that have 
increased emission controls. MBTA and 
MBCR will also pay a $225,000 civil 
penalty to the United States pursuant to 
the Decree. 

The Department of Justice will 
receive, for a period of thirty (30) days 
from the date of this publication, 
comments relating to the Decree. 
Comments should be addressed to the 
Assistant Attorney General, 
Environment and Natural Resources 
Division, and either e-mailed to 
pubcomment-ees.enrd@usdoj.gov or 
mailed to P.O. Box 7611, U.S. 
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Department of Justice, Washington, DC 
20044–7611, and should refer to United 
States v. Massachusetts Bay 
Transportation Authority (‘‘MBTA’’) and 
Massachusetts Bay Commuter Railroad 
Company, L.L.C., D.J. Ref. 90–5–2–1– 
09617. 

During the public comment period, 
the Decree may also be examined on the 
following Department of Justice Web 
site, http://www.usdoj.gov/enrd/ 
Consent_Decrees.html. A copy of the 
Decree may also be obtained by mail 
from the Consent Decree Library, P.O. 
Box 7611, U.S. Department of Justice, 
Washington, DC 20044–7611 or by 
faxing or e-mailing a request to Tonia 
Fleetwood (tonia.fleetwood@usdoj.gov), 
fax no. (202) 514–0097, phone 
confirmation number (202) 514–1547. In 
requesting a copy from the Consent 
Decree Library, please enclose a check 
in the amount of $7.75 (25 cents per 
page reproduction cost) payable to the 
U.S. Treasury or, if by e-mail or fax, 
forward a check in that amount to the 
Consent Decree Library at the stated 
address. 

Maureen Katz, 
Assistant Section Chief, Environmental 
Enforcement Section, Environment and 
Natural Resources Division. 
[FR Doc. 2010–19622 Filed 8–9–10; 8:45 am] 

BILLING CODE 4410–15–P 

DEPARTMENT OF JUSTICE 

Antitrust Division 

Notice Pursuant to the National 
Cooperative Research and Production 
Act of 1933–PXI Systems Alliance, Inc. 

Correction 

In notice document 2010–12033 
appearing on page 28294 in the issue of 
Thursday, May 20, 2010 make the 
following correction: 

In the second column, in the last 
paragraph, in the second line ‘‘April 1, 
2010’’ should read ‘‘April 15, 2010’’. 
[FR Doc. C1–2010–12033 Filed 8–9–10; 8:45 am] 

BILLING CODE 1505–01–D 

DEPARTMENT OF JUSTICE 

Bureau of Alcohol, Tobacco, Firearms 
and Explosives 

[Docket No. ATF 36N] 

Hearing Procedures Relating to 
Federal Firearms Licenses (2010R–2T) 

AGENCY: Bureau of Alcohol, Tobacco, 
Firearms and Explosives (ATF), 
Department of Justice. 

ACTION: General notice. 

SUMMARY: In this notice, the Bureau of 
Alcohol, Tobacco, Firearms and 
Explosives (ATF) advises federal 
firearms licensees and other interested 
parties of its current procedures 
regarding administrative hearings held 
as part of firearms license proceedings. 
The intended purpose of the notice is to 
ensure that federal firearms licensees 
and persons applying for a federal 
firearms license are familiar with the 
hearing process relative to the denial, 
revocation, or suspension of a federal 
firearms license, or the imposition of a 
civil fine. This notice does not contain 
any policy guidelines as to whether a 
notice of denial, revocation, suspension 
or fine should be issued. 
FOR FURTHER INFORMATION CONTACT: Gary 
Taylor; Office of Field Operations; 
Bureau of Alcohol, Tobacco, Firearms 
and Explosives; U.S. Department of 
Justice; 99 New York Avenue, NE., 
Washington, DC 20226, telephone (202) 
648–7259. 
SUPPLEMENTARY INFORMATION: 

I. Background 
The Attorney General is responsible 

for enforcing the provisions of the Gun 
Control Act of 1968 (‘‘the Act’’), 18 
U.S.C. Chapter 44. He has delegated that 
responsibility to the Director of ATF, 
subject to the direction of the Attorney 
General and the Deputy Attorney 
General. 28 CFR 0.130(a). ATF has 
promulgated regulations that implement 
the provisions of the Act in 27 CFR Part 
478. 

Pursuant to the authority vested in the 
Director of ATF by 28 U.S.C. 599A and 
28 CFR 0.130–0.133, the authority to 
issue notices, conduct licensing 
hearings, render final decisions and 
issue final notices after a firearms 
licensing hearing has been redelegated 
to the Director of Industry Operations 
(DIO) in each field division in most 
instances. However, these same 
authorities are redelegated to the Deputy 
Assistant Director, Industry Operations, 
for all matters that he/she determines to 
involve novel or unusual issues of fact, 
law, or enforcement policy; matters of 
national or international significance; or 
matters that involve or are related to 
issues arising in more than one ATF 
field division. Thus, the term ‘‘Director’’ 
in this document is referring to the 
deciding official who may be the ATF 
Director, or a delegate, including the 
DIO, in most instances, or the Deputy 
Assistant Director, Industry Operations. 

The regulations in Subpart E of Part 
478, §§ 478.71–478.78, relate to 
proceedings involving federal firearms 
licenses, including the denial, 

revocation, or suspension of a license, 
or the imposition of a civil fine. In 
particular, § 478.71 provides that the 
Director of ATF may issue a notice of 
denial on ATF Form 4498 (Notice of 
Denial of Application for License) to an 
applicant for a license if he has reason 
to believe that the applicant is not 
qualified, under the provisions of 
§ 478.47, to receive a license. The notice 
sets forth the matters of fact and law 
relied upon in determining that the 
application should be denied, and 
affords the applicant 15 days from the 
date of receipt of the notice in which to 
request a hearing to review the denial. 
If a request for a hearing is not filed 
within such time, the application is 
disapproved and a copy, so marked, is 
returned to the applicant. 

Under § 478.72, an applicant who has 
been denied an original or renewal 
license may file a request with the 
Director of Industry Operations (DIO) 
for a hearing to review the denial of the 
application. On conclusion of the 
hearing and after consideration of all 
relevant facts and circumstances 
presented by the applicant or his 
representative, the Director (or his or 
her delegate) renders a decision 
confirming or reversing the denial of the 
application. If the decision is that the 
denial should stand, a certified copy of 
the Director’s findings and conclusions 
are furnished to the applicant with a 
final notice of denial, ATF Form 4501 
(now ATF Form 5300.13), Final Notice 
of Denial of Application or Revocation 
of Firearms License. In addition, a copy 
of the application, marked 
‘‘Disapproved,’’ is furnished to the 
applicant. If the decision is that the 
license applied for should be issued, the 
applicant will be so notified, in writing, 
and the license will be issued. 

Section 478.73 provides that 
whenever the Director has reason to 
believe that a firearms licensee has 
willfully violated any provision of the 
Act or part 478, a notice of revocation 
of the license (ATF Form 4500) may be 
issued. In addition, a notice of 
revocation, suspension, or imposition of 
a civil fine may be issued on Form 4500 
whenever the Director has reason to 
believe that a licensee has knowingly 
transferred a firearm to an unlicensed 
person and knowingly failed to comply 
with the requirements of 18 U.S.C. 
922(t)(1), relating to a NICS (National 
Instant Criminal Background Check 
System) background check or, in 
violation of 18 U.S.C. 922(z) and 924 
(p), has sold, delivered, or transferred 
any handgun to any unlicensed person 
without providing a secure gun storage 
or safety device. 
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